
 

Borrego Water District Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting 

December 14, 2016 @ 9:00 a.m. 

806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA  92004 

 
 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES 

 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Roll Call 

D. Approval of Agenda  

E. Approval of Minutes  

a. November 16, 2016 Special Meeting  

F. Comments from Directors and Requests for Future Agenda Items 

G. Comments from the Public and Requests for Future Agenda Items  

               (Comments will be limited to 3 minutes) 

H. Correspondence: 

                         

II. ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

A. Presentation of Borrego Water District’s 2016 FY Financials by Squar Milner LLP.  

 

B. Borrego Basin GSP Update from County of San Diego – J. Bennett, L. Crowe & A. Elias 

 

C. Borrego Basin GSP Advisory Committee Selections 

Approve Nominee for BWD Ratepayer Representative – R. Delahay & H. Ehrlich  

 

D. Annual SB165 Report for CFD No. 2007-1. 

 

E. RFP for Solar Power Installation at BWD Offices/Warehouses – D. Dale  

 

F. Authorize staff to issue a Notice to Proceed for the Hydrogen Sulfide Odor Assessment – D. Dale    

 

G. Authorize staff to accept land donation from Charles White and authorize staff to complete necessary 

documentation - 114 

 

 

III.  STAFF REPORTS 

 

A. Financial Reports –  October Reports 

 

B. General Manager - See informational items below  

 

C. Water and Wastewater Operations Report November 2016 – Greg Holloway  

 

1



D. Water Production/Use Records November 2016 – Greg Holloway  

 

 

IV. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 

A. None 

 

V. AD-HOC COMITTEES: 

 

A. Finance: Brecht & Tatusko 

 

B. Executive: Hart & Brecht 

 

C. Operations and Infrastructure: Delahay & Tatusko 

 

D. Personnel: Hart & Ehrlich 

 

E. Public Outreach: Delahay & Ehrlich  

 

VI. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
A. ACWA Fall Conference – H. Ehrlich & G. Poole 

B. 900 Tank Design - D. Dale 

C. Review of new BWD Water Bills – J. Tatusko 

D. 2018 Statewide Water Bond Update – L. Brecht, H. Ehrlich, G. Poole 

E. Grant Funding Update – Prop One & USDA – Joe Tatusko 

F. Timeline/Calendar  

 

VII. CLOSED SESSION –  

 

A. Personnel – PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

  Title:    General Manager  

  California Government Code section 54957 

B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section 

54956.9(d)(1): Case No. Case No. 37-2010-00053928-CU-OR-NC; Case No. 37-2010-00054709-CU-

OR-NC; Case No. 37-2013-00034879-CU-OR-CTL: Legal Counsel:  Warren Diven, Best Best & 

Krieger LLP 

   

VIII. CLOSING PROCEDURE 

 

A. Suggested Items for Next Agenda 

 

B. The next Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for January 17, 2017 at the Borrego Water 

District  

2



Borrego Water District 

MINUTES 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Wednesday, November 16, 2016 

9:00 AM 

806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA 92004 

 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES 

A. Call to Order:  President Hart called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

B. Pledge of Allegiance:  Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 C. Roll Call:   Directors: Present:   President Hart, Vice-President  

        Brecht, Secretary/Treasurer   

        Tatusko, Delahay, Ehrlich   

    Staff:  Geoff Poole, General Manager 

      David Dale, District Engineer 

      Wendy Quinn, Recording Secretary 

Public:  Susan Percival, Club Circle East Ray Shindler 

   HOA    Rebecca Falk, Sponsor  

  Trey Driscoll, Dudek    Group 

 D. Approval of Agenda:  Geoff Poole requested that Item II.B (Acceptance and 

Approval of Audited Financial Statements for FY 2015-16) be postponed until the December 

meeting, when the auditors will be available for a conference call.  He further reported that a new 

page 2 of the Agenda had been distributed due to a lettering error.  MSC: Brecht/Tatusko 

approving the Agenda as amended. 
E. Approval of Minutes: 

  Special meeting of October 18, 2016 

MSC:  Brecht/Ehrlich approving the Minutes of the Special Meeting of October 18, 

2016 as corrected (Item III.B, the dollar amount for the DWR facilitator services should be 

$56,000, not $5,600 (two places).)  Director Ehrlich abstained from the vote due to his absence 

from the meeting. 

  Regular Meeting of October 26, 2016 

  MSC:  Brecht/Tatusko approving the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 

26, 2016 as written.   

 F. Comments from Directors and Requests for Future Agenda Items:  None 

 G. Comments from the Public and Requests for Future Agenda Items:  Susan 

Percival of the Club Circle East Homeowners’ Association reported that she met with 

representatives of the Borrego Springs Resort, and they are interested in BWD’s continued 

administration of the Club Circle Golf Course.  President Hart requested that further discussion 

be included in the next Agenda, and that golf course manager Bob Moore be invited to the 

meeting.  Details were referred to the Executive Committee. 

 H. Correspondence:  None 

.  

II. CURRENT BUSINESS MATTERS 

  A. Consideration of Multi Family, Master Metered Developments Water Rate 

Structure:    Mr. Poole reported on the results of a survey of ten water agencies, nine in San 

Diego County plus Irvine, as to their policies regarding rates for multifamily, master metered 

developments.  Seven charge as BWD does, a uniform rate.  Three use a tiered system similar to 

BWD’s residential rate, but with lower tiers than the normal residential.  Raftelis suggested a 

five-unit cap for Tier 1, which would generate very little change in income.  The associated 

3



Proposition 218 process would cost approximately $20,000 for Raftelis’ services, plus other 

expenses.  Director Ehrlich pointed out that there is an equity issue in treating all residential 

customers equally.  He suggested evaluating a change as part of the next amendment to the 

overall BWD rate structure.  The Board agreed to consider it as part of the next 218 process, 

scheduled for five years from the last one, or earlier if deemed necessary for other reasons.  Mr. 

Poole will inform the Wrights, requestors of the modification. 

  B. Acceptance and Approval of Audited Financial Statements for FY 2015-16:  This 

item was continued to the December meeting. 

  C. Consideration of Form 102 for 236 AG-2 Water Credits for Fallowing last phase 

of Pivot Farm Lots, D, E, F and G to T2/Considine:  Mr. Poole reported that the Pivot Farm 

fallowing was in its final stages.  He referred to Form 102, Grant of Exclusive Groundwater 

Easement, Item D, Board Package page 71, second line.  The reference should be to 236 water 

credits, not 100.  This completed Rams Hills’ required fallowing.   MSC:  Brecht/Delahay 

approving Form 102. 

  D. Consideration of California Special Districts Association Membership:  Director 

Ehrlich noted that he is an associate member of both ACWA and CSDA and thinks both have 

advantages.  Director Tatusko pointed out that CSDA focuses more on governance, while 

ACWA deals primarily with water.  He thought joining CSDA would be beneficial to develop 

relationships in the State and County and would be helpful in applying for grants.  Director 

Ehrlich agreed, citing CSDA’s assistance with governance, transparency and legislation, and 

noting that they would visit districts to assist with individual issues.  They also offer financing 

for local projects, and joint powers insurance for workers’ compensation and liability.  Mr. Poole 

agreed that joining would be worthwhile.  MSC:  Ehrlich/Tatusko approving BWD’s 

membership in the State and County Chapters of CSDA. 

   

III. STAFF REPORTS 

  A. Financial Reports – October 2016:  None.  The Financial Reports will be 

transmitted to the Board when completed. 

  B. General Manager/Operations Report:  Mr. Poole announced that his report would 

be covered under the Informational Items. 

 C. Water and Wastewater Operations Report – October 2016:  Director Ehrlich 

expressed concern regarding the “water loss” (unaccounted-for water) in ID 4.  Mr. Poole agreed 

to bring it up at the next O&I Committee meeting.  Director Delahay noted that Greg Holloway 

is in the process of changing out the older meters.  President Hart suggested that Director Ehrlich 

discuss the issue with Jerry Rolwing and Mr. Holloway, and that it be included in the master plan 

which David Dale is developing.  Director Tatusko pointed out that water use was significantly 

higher in August and September 2016 as compared to 2015, assumedly due to the drought.  This 

could be justification for a grant application.  

 D. Water Production/Use Records – October 2016:  The Water Production/Use 

Records were included in the Board Package. 

 

IV. ATTORNEY'S REPORT 
 None  

 

V. AD HOC COMMITTEES 

  A. Finance:  Director Brecht reported that the Committee was awaiting completion 

of the master plan.  The District’s cash flow is sufficient to support a bond measure, but we don’t 

know how much.  The Committee is also working on refinancing the Community Facilities 

District, and some legal issues need to be addressed. 

 

4



  B. Executive:  Mr. Poole reported he had attended the last Borrego Water Coalition 

meeting.  President Hart reported the Committee was continuing to work with the County. 

  C. Operations and Infrastructure:  Director Tatusko reported that the Committee met 

with Messrs. Poole, Holloway and Dale and discussed the one response to the RFP for a 

hydrogen sulfide odor investigation and assessment on BWD sewer force main.  The bid was 

$33,900 from Dudek.  Director Delahay recommended waiting 30 days to see if Roy Martinez 

and Troy Depriest can resolve the odor problem, and if not, award the contract to Dudek.  Cody 

Cox has resigned from the District. 

 Mr. Dale reported that the Well 16 flow would be tested today to ensure that the 

pump is sufficient to reach the 900 Tank site in the event a new reservoir is located there.  

Director Tatusko reported that work on Well 18 was complete and Well 12 is in progress, both 

within budget.  Mr. Poole reported that a letter to the company from which the District purchased 

a defective bladder was undergoing engineering and technical review. 

 D. Personnel:  President Hart reported that she was meeting with Director Ehrlich 

today to give him an overview of the District’s internal organization.  Mr. Poole reported that 

there were two candidates from the last round of interviews who would be considered for 

employment following Mr. Cox’s departure.  His position will be filled through internal 

promotion. 

 E. Public Outreach:  Director Delahay reported that he was continuing to staff the 

District table at the Friday farmers’ market, which has been busy. 

 F. BWD GSP Ratepayer:  Director Delahay reported that the Committee would meet 

tomorrow to discuss the three applicants for the position of ratepayer representative on the GSP 

Advisory Committee.  After interviews, a recommendation will be presented to the Board at its 

next meeting, along with a report on the appointees from other groups included on the Advisory 

Committee.  Jim Bennett from the County will attend. 

 

VI. INFORMATION ITEMS 

  A. USDA Grant/Loan Opportunities:  Mr. Poole reported that Trey Driscoll had put 

him in contact with representatives from USDA, who came out and met with Mr. Poole and 

Director Tatusko last week regarding their grant and loan opportunities.  The O&I Committee 

will identify CIP projects that may qualify and report back to the Board. 

  B. Discussion of Solar Power for BWD Offices/Warehouse/Parking Lot:  Director 

Tatusko reported that for the last 12 months, BWD’s average electric bill has been $924.  It is 

estimated that solar power would save $11,000 over that period of time.  Mr. Dale will create an 

RFP upon Board request, which Director Tatusko recommended.  The cost is estimated at 

$125,000 for a 50 kilowatt system.  Mr. Dale will bring a proposed RFP to the Board at its 

December meeting.  Director Tatusko announced that BWD’s solar rebate for the treatment plant 

system has been approved and will provide $65,000 over five years. 

  C. Dudek Analysis of Inflow Calculations in Borrego Basin:  Mr. Poole explained 

that the analysis requested from Dudek at the last meeting was determined by the County to be a 

central component of the GSP that should be included in that process.  They agreed to include it 

as a deliverable early in the process, and Mr. Poole concurred.  He has informed Mr. Driscoll. 

  D. Discussion of Accepting Land:  Mr. Poole reported that Charles White was 

interested in donating land to the District.  The property is close to land that he donated 

previously and near one of the BWD wells.  It could be a potential site for retention ponds to 

capture storm water or for future wells.  Director Ehrlich inquired how many previous land 

donations there were, and Mr. Poole agreed to compile a list. 

  E. Request for Proposal – Borrego Valley GSP:  President Hart reported that the 

District had an opportunity to review the County draft RFP and their suggestions were 

incorporated.  Director Tatusko attended the Industry Day attended by potential contractors. 

5



  F. SD County Website – Borrego Valley GSP:  Mr. Poole invited the Board’s 

attention to the County website, included in the Agenda. 

  G. Article from LA CURBED Magazine – A Desert Oasis Dries Up by Zoie 

Matthew:  Director Brecht invited the Board’s attention to this magazine article, included in the 

Board Package. 

  H. BWD Timeline:  Mr. Poole noted that he and Director Brecht had discussed some 

changes to the timeline relative to the business plan.  They will review them again before the 

next meeting.  Director Ehrlich requested additional information on the timeline items during his 

orientation tour on Friday.  President Hart pointed out that agenda planning for the Town Hall 

meeting typically begins at the January workshop. 

   

VII. CLOSING PROCEDURE 

  A. Suggested Items for Next Agenda:  Items for the next Agenda were discussed 

throughout the meeting.  The next Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for December 

14, 2016 at the Borrego Water District. 

  There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 10:25 a.m. 

6



 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – DECEMBER 14, 2016 

AGENDA BILL II.A 

 

December 6, 2016 

 

TO:    Board of Directors, Borrego Water District 

FROM:        Geoff Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:    Presentation of Borrego Water District’s 2016 FY Financials by Squar Milner LLP.  

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive verbal presentation (via telephone) from Auditors Chris 

Thibideau and Jim Rotherham and approve BWD FY 2016 Financials 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: The Audit is complete and the Final Financial Statements for the 2015-16 

Fiscal Year are attached. Representatives from Squar Milner LLP will provide an overview of the 

documents and answer any questions via telephone at the Board Meeting. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 2015-16 Proposed BWD Financials  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – DECEMBER 14, 2016 

AGENDA BILL II.B 

December 6, 2016 

 

TO:    Board of Directors, Borrego Water District 

FROM:        Geoff Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:    Borrego Basin GSP Update from County of San Diego – J. Bennett, L. Crowe & A. Elias 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive verbal presentation from County Staff 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Jim Bennett asked for an opportunity to update the BWD Board on the GSP 

process. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

64



 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – DECEMBER 14, 2016 

AGENDA BILL II.C 

December 8, 2016 

 

TO:    Board of Directors, Borrego Water District 

FROM:        Geoff Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:    Borrego Basin GSP Advisory Committee Selections – R. Delahay & H. Ehrlich 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Discuss and Appoint Nominee for BWD Ratepayer representative  

 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  

3 Applicants responded to the BWD’s request for volunteers to participate in the Borrego GSP 

Advisory Committee as the BWD Representative, Richard Dopp, Mark Kerson and Ray 

Schindler. The Committee reviewed the Application Forms (attached) and conducted one on one 

interviews. After consideration, the Committee recommends Richard Dopp. Although not 

expected, in the event an Alternate is needed, BWD will contact the other 2 candidates to see if 

they are available and still interested in serving. 

 

  

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

65



 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – DECEMBER 14, 2016 

AGENDA BILL II.D 

December 6, 2016 

 

TO:    Board of Directors, Borrego Water District 

FROM:        Geoff Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:    Annual SB165 Report for CFD No. 2007-1. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Annual SB 165 Report 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Each year, BWD is required to adopt the Annual SB 165 Report. BWD Bond 

Advisors, David Taussig and Assoc is requesting approval of the attached documents by the BWD Board. 

. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: SB 165 Report  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66



  12/6/2016 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2007-1 (MONTESORO) 

SPECIAL TAX BONDS, SERIES 2007 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 
 

The purpose of this report is to comply with the provisions of the Local Agency Special Tax and 
Bond Accountability Act (the “Act”).  The Act provides that any local special tax measure that is 
subject to voter approval on or after January 1, 2001, that would provide for the imposition of a 
special tax by a local agency shall require the chief fiscal officer of the levying local agency to 
file a report with its governing body no later than January 1, 2002, and at least once a year 
thereafter.  The annual report shall contain both of the following: 
 

 The amount of funds collected and expended. 
 The status of any project required or authorized to be funded as identified in 

subdivision (a) of Section 50075.1 and Article 1.5, Section 53410. 
 

The Borrego Water District issued $9,530,000 in Community Facilities District No. 2007-1 
Special Tax Bonds in June 2007.  The bonds were issued for purposes of refunding prior bonds 
issued by Community Facilities District No. 95-1. 
  
Separate accounts have been established with a third party trustee to administer the receipt and 
subsequent disbursement of the bond proceeds.  A summary sheet showing the receipt of funds 
as well as all disbursements made during the reporting period (November 1, 2015 to October 31, 
2016) is attached as a part of this report.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T:\Clients\BORREGO.SPR\ADMIN\16-17\CFD 2007-1\SB165\SB165 annual report_2016.doc 

67



D
av

id
 T

au
ss

ig
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 I

nc
.

12
/6

/2
0

16

9:
19

 A
M

B
O

R
R

E
G

O
 W

A
T

E
R

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

C
F

D
 N

O
. 2

0
07

-1
 (

M
O

N
T

E
S

O
R

O
)

S
B

16
5 

F
U

N
D

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

B
eg

in
n

in
g

 B
al

an
ce

F
u

n
d

s 
R

ec
ei

ve
d

F
u

n
d

s 
E

xp
en

d
ed

E
n

d
in

g
 B

al
a

n
ce

F
u

n
d

as
 o

f 
11

/0
1/

15
(1

1/
01

/1
5 

th
ro

u
g

h
 1

0
/3

1/
16

)
(1

1/
01

/1
5 

th
ro

u
g

h
 1

0
/3

1/
16

)
as

 o
f 

10
/3

1/
20

16

S
pe

ci
al

 T
ax

 F
un

d
$1

$9
6,

25
7

($
51

,3
55

)
$4

4
,9

03

In
te

re
st

 A
cc

ou
nt

$0
$0

$0
$0

P
ri

nc
ip

al
 A

cc
ou

nt
$0

$0
$0

$0

R
es

er
ve

 A
cc

ou
nt

$0
$0

$0
$0

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

E
xp

en
se

 A
cc

ou
n

t
$8

8
,5

07
$4

5
($

15
,8

89
)

$7
2,

66
3

R
ed

em
pt

io
n 

A
cc

ou
nt

$0
$0

$0
$0

C
os

ts
 o

f 
Is

su
a

nc
e 

F
un

d
$0

$0
$0

$0

R
eb

at
e 

F
un

d
$0

$0
$0

$0

S
ur

pl
us

 F
un

d
$0

$0
$0

$0

A
lte

rn
a

tiv
e 

P
en

a
lty

 A
cc

ou
nt

$0
$0

$0
$0

E
sc

ro
w

 F
un

d
$0

$0
$0

$0

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

$8
8,

50
8

$9
6

,3
02

($
67

,2
44

)
$1

17
,5

65

C
:\U

se
rs

\Y
ae

l\D
oc

um
en

ts
\S

B
 1

65
\B

or
re

go
\[A

C
C

T
_S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

_2
01

6
.x

ls
]A

68



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – DECEMBER 14, 2016 

AGENDA BILL II.E 

December 6, 2016 

 

TO:    Board of Directors, Borrego Water District 

FROM:        Geoff Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:    RFP for Solar Power Installation at BWD Office/Warehouses – D. Dale 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approved attached documents 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: David Dale has also completed the RFP for installation of Solar Power at the 

BWD Office/Warehouses 

FISCAL IMPACT: To be determined 

ATTACHMENTS: RFP for BWD Solar Project 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

69



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE A 35kW SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

Page 1 of 11

December 1, 2017

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS TO

PROVIDE A 35 kW PV SOLAR

POWER SYSTEM

Due By: Wednesday, February 1, 2017 at 3:00 PM

70



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE A 35kW SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

Page 2 of 11

1. Purpose of RFQ: The purpose of this RFQ is to identify a qualified

contractor/vendor to provide the Borrego Water District (District) with a reliable

electrical energy source from solar power, and to provide the District with the

ongoing electrical power at a lower cost than is currently available from SDG&E

for a minimum of 25 years.

2. District’s Immediate Objectives: The objective of this Request for Proposal

(RFP) is to identify and select the most qualified turnkey photovoltaic (PV)

system Contractor/Vendor to develop, design, permit, fabricate, deliver, install,

operate, insure, and maintain a PV solar system at the District Office located at

806 Palm Canyon Drive in Borrego Springs, California. The solar array shall be

located on top of the Maintenance Building roof. Upon selection of the most

qualified Contractor/Vendor, The District intends to purchase the entire system

outright. The size of the proposed PV solar system shall be 35 kW.

3. Background: The District is a small public water and wastewater district serving

approximately 2,200 customers in beautiful Borrego Springs, California

(Borrego), a retirement and resort community located about 90 miles drive NE of

San Diego in San Diego County (county) and surrounded by the Anza-Borrego

Desert State Park (the park), the largest state park and wilderness area in the

State of California (state).

The District is a significant power consumer in Borrego Springs, relying on grid-

purchased electricity from SDG&E to run its various facilities. The District

consumes approximately 60,000 kWh annually for the office and maintenance

buildings.

With SDG&E steadily increasing the kWh electricity rates charged to BWD year

after year, BWD is seeking a means to minimize its reliance on SDG&E and to

achieve both long-term electricity cost savings and cost certainty through the use

of solar. The proposed solar system would interconnect to the grid under the

SDG&E Net Energy Metering (“NEM”) program. Under NEM, the electric energy

generated by on-site solar is used to offset the electric energy provided by

71



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE A 35kW SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

Page 3 of 11

SDG&E to the District Office. NEM is the standard program for commercial and

residential solar systems in SDG&E territory and in the State of California. The

proposed solar system would reduce, or eliminate in full, the net amount of

electricity purchased from SDG&E.

4. General:

The scope of services provided by the Contractor/Vendor shall include all tasks

required to design, fabricate, deliver, install, operate, and maintain the PV system

for the District. The scope shall also include, but not be limited to, securing all

permits and approvals from governing agencies, all labor, taxes, services, permit

fees, and equipment necessary to produce a fully operational solar PV system.

The proposal shall contain a detailed explanation of the complete project and

delineation of all work tasks to be performed by the awarded Contractor/Vendor.

Contractor/Vendor should prepare system summary detailing the equipment/size,

and a sample cash flow analysis detailing expected savings (both kwh and dollar)

and long-term savings.

The PV system will be located on property owned by the District. Proposer is to

determine the feasibility and costs for installing the PV system at the District

Office.

5. Scope of Project:

5-1 Design, Engineering, & Permitting

Design/engineer the solar PV system to maximize the solar energy resources,

taking into consideration the District’s electrical demand and load patterns,

proposed installation site, available solar resources, existing site conditions,

proposed future site improvements, and other relevant factors. One year of billing

is attached to this RFP.

Provide design documents that provide the following minimum information:

 Timeline/Project Schedule

 System description

72



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE A 35kW SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

Page 4 of 11

 Equipment details and description

 Preliminary Layout of installation

 Preliminary Layout of equipment

 Selection of key equipment

 Specifications for equipment procurement and installation

 All engineering associated with structural and mounting details

 Performance of equipment components, and subsystems

 Integration of solar PV system with other power sources

 Electrical grid interconnection requirements

 Controls, monitors, and instrumentation

 System performance monitoring

Awarded Contractor/Vendor will secure from governing agencies and the utility

company all required rights, permits, approvals, and interconnection agreements

at no additional cost to the District. The District will become the signatory on

applications, permits, and utility agreements only where necessary. The awarded

Contractor/Vendor will complete and submit in a timely manner all documentation

required to qualify for available rebates and incentives.

5-2 Installation

Supply all equipment, materials, and labor necessary to install the solar PV

systems on the Maintenance Building roof and integrate them with other power

sources.

5-3 Electrical Interconnections

Supply and install all equipment required to interconnect the solar PV systems to

SDG&E distribution system. The awarded Contractor/Vendor will fulfill all

application, studies, and testing procedures to complete the interconnection

process. All costs associated with utility interconnection shall be borne by the

awarded Contractor/Vendor.

73



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE A 35kW SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

Page 5 of 11

5-4 Commissioning & Acceptance Testing

During the start-up, the District, and/or its independent engineer/consultant, shall

observe and verify each system performance. Required commissioning and

acceptance test services include:

 Starting up the solar PV systems until it achieves the performance

requirements

 Conducting the performance testing over a consecutive twenty-four (24)

hour period

 Conducting the successful delivery of power within thirty (30) days

following completion of the system, meeting each benchmark.

5-5 Operation and Maintenance Manuals and As-Built Drawings

Provide three (3) sets of operation, maintenance, and parts manuals for the solar

PV system. The manual shall cover all components, options, and accessories

supplied. It shall include maintenance, trouble-shooting, and safety precautions

specific to the supplied equipment. It shall also delineate responsibilities of both

parties.

5-6 Monitoring

Monitoring of system performance is a required element of the RFP.

Provide the equipment and services to tie into the SDG&E system to allow the

District to monitor, analyze, and display historical and live solar electricity

generation data. The regularly collected data should reflect, but not be limited to,

the following:

 System performance

 System availability

 Average and accumulated output

 Capacity factor

 Degradation

 Cost avoidance

74



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE A 35kW SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

Page 6 of 11

Provide a long term cost for electricity (kWh) for the term of the awarded contract

and any assumptions used in these calculations.

6. Warranties and Guarantees

The vendor/contractor shall warrant to the District that during the one (1) year

period from and after the date on which the work was completed (“warranty

date”) the solar array and all appurtenances thereto including all materials,

hardware and other improvements shall be free from defects caused by faulty

workmanship and defective materials. If a defect or faulty workmanship is

identified within the one year warranty period, the vendor/contractor shall

immediately make the necessary repairs at no cost to the District.

7. Operation and Maintenance

Provide a financial impact or price for operating and maintaining the PV system

on the District’s behalf for a twenty five (25) year service term. Perform all

required regularly scheduled maintenance activities (at an additional cost as

identified in the cost proposal) in order to keep the system operational and

performing to production guarantees.

8. Insurance

The contractor/vendor is responsible and shall pay for insurance for the project

during construction and maintenance activities. Insurance shall include both

general liability ($2,000,000) and property insurance ($1,000,000). The District

shall be named as additional insured on the policies.

9. Licensing/Certification

Contractor/Vendor must be properly licensed in the State of California. The

Contractor license shall appear clearly on Contractor/Vendor’s proposal and the

license expiration date appear on the Contractor/Vendor’s Proposal.

10. Operation & Maintenance Requirements

The Contractor's operation and maintenance service program should provide the

following minimum requirements:

75



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE A 35kW SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

Page 7 of 11

 Annual on-site system inspection, including:

 System testing (operating current of each electrical string)

 Routine preventive maintenance

 Repair and/or replacement of regularly scheduled replacement parts

(including equipment and labor)

 System performance monitoring and historical data access for customer.

Data should include:

o System energy and power production

o Insolation

11. Contractor Qualification

Please provide the following information:

 Status (private/publicly-held)

 Number of employees

 States in which you do business

 Target customers (residential, commercial, industrial, government, etc.)

 Project team profile, including resumes of personnel to be directly

involved with the development of the proposed systems.

 Team leader identification for the entire Proposal, including full contact

information.

 Identification of each entity, sub-contractor, person or firm involved in the

Proposal and their role/responsibility, e.g. design, installation, permitting,

equipment supply by component, operations and maintenance.

 Identification of the lead person responsible for each of the entities or

firms described in above.

12. Contractor Experience

Provide overview of the firm(s) commercial grid-connected PV experience (do not

include residential PV experience)

 Average commercial grid-connected PV system size installed by your

company during the last five years.

 Total commercial MW of grid-connected PV systems installed

 Experience with SDG&E.

76



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE A 35kW SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

Page 8 of 11

 Experience with local government projects.

13. Contractor References

List five (5) or more commercial grid-connected PV projects installed in the

United States over the last five years. Include for each project:

 Exact role(s) your organization performed for the project (e.g. material

supplier, lead contractor, electrical subcontractor, design, consulting,

etc.).

 Location.

 Application description.

 Product name/type.

 Customer name and contact information.

 Date installed.

 Project cost.

 PV module used.

 KW rating.

 Current operational status of system.

Proposals shall provide evidence that the proposed technology and equipment

would meet or exceed all currently applicable and proposed safety and

interconnection standards. All equipment components must be UL certified, and

meet existing facility structural and fire safety requirements.

Proposals shall provide evidence that the proposed technology and equipment

would meet or exceed all currently applicable and proposed environmental

standards.

14. Pricing

Provide pricing for a turnkey (design/build) PV system located at the District Office.

Pricing shall include:

77



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE A 35kW SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

Page 9 of 11

1. US dollars for selling the entire 35 kW PV system to the District upon completion

of construction and acceptance by the District. No Buy America requirement.

The lump sum price shall be broken down into the following

(1) Preliminary activities: including but not limited to site review, equipment

specifications, engineering, design package submittal, prepare SDG&E

interconnection applications, prepare application for rebates, coordinate final

design with suppliers, hold pre-construction meeting, electrical engineer PE

review and stamp (if necessary), and permitting.

(2) Delivery and installation of equipment: Included but not limited to all

necessary equipment, trenching wiring, mounting, etc. to make a functional

35 kW system. Also include construction inspections, meetings and

documentation.

(3) Final start-up, commissioning and reports.

2. Include estimated regular and scheduled maintenance of the 35 kW PV system

over the 25 year period.

3. When comparing District cost savings, assume a 3.0% annual escalator in

SDG&E prices.

4. Proposed payment terms.

15. Schedule

The Contractor/Vendor shall provide a proposed schedule for completion of the

project.

16. Walk Through

A non-mandatory project walkthrough date for all interested vendors/contractors has

been scheduled for January 4, 2017 at 10:00am at the project site located at 806

Palm Canyon Drive in Borrego Springs, California.

78



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE A 35kW SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

Page 10 of 11

17. Incurring Cost

The District is not liable for any cost incurred by entities prior to executing a contract.

18. Selection Process

The Operations and Infrastructure Committee has been tasked with overseeing the

identification and recommendation of a qualified contractor/vendor for the board of

directors of the District to approve.

Proposals will be evaluated by the District based on:

 The competence to perform the services as reflected by past experience in

providing the services outlined herein.

 The ability to meet the requirements of this RFP.

 Overall package and financial benefit to the District.

The District reserves the right to select or short-list any Contractor/Vendor that, in

its opinion and at its sole discretion, is deemed to be most advantageous and in

the best interests of the District, including granting a preference to local

contractors. The District also reserves the right to delay or discontinue this

selection process at any time during the process. The District shall not be liable

for any cost incurred by any Contractor/Vendor during the selection process. The

District also reserves the right to reject the selected Contractor/Vendor and

contract with another party if the District and the selected Contractor/Vendor

cannot successfully negotiate a contract for the proposed work.

19. Proposal Deadline

Three copies of the Proposal to Provide a Solar Power System must be delivered to:

Geoff Poole, General Manager

Borrego Water District

806 Palm Canyon Drive

Borrego Springs, CA 92004

By: Wednesday February 1, 2017 at 3:00 PM

79



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) TO PROVIDE A 35kW SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

Page 11 of 11

20. Inquires

Inquiries can be directed to Geoff Poole, General Manager at

Borrego Water District

806 Palm Canyon Drive

Borrego Springs, CA 92004

or by phone at 760-767-5806

or email at geoff@borregowd.org

LOCATION OF PROPOSED PV SOLAR PANELS

Proposed location for PV
panels, south facing roof of
Maintenance Building

BWD District Office Building
806 Palm Canyon Drive,
Borrego Springs CA 92004

BWD District
Maintenance Building

80



 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – DECEMBER 14, 2016 

AGENDA BILL II.F 

December 6, 2016 

 

TO:    Board of Directors, Borrego Water District 

FROM:        Geoff Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:    Authorize staff to issue a Notice to Proceed for the Hydrogen Sulfide Odor Assessment – 

D. Dale    

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize staff to issue Notice to Proceed and begin Assessment 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Approximately 2 months ago, David Dale completed the RFP and a Proposal 

was received from Dudek for the completion of the Hydrogen Sulfide Odor Assessment 

FISCAL IMPACT: The budget for the Proposal is $33,500 and Staff intends to meet with Dudek and 

discuss ways to reduce the cost of the Study 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposal for Hydrogen Sulfide Odor Reduction Assessment 

 

 

 

 

 

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – DECEMBER 14, 2016 

AGENDA BILL II.G 

December 8, 2016 

 

TO:    Board of Directors, Borrego Water District 

FROM:        Geoff Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:    Authorize Staff to Accept Land Donation from Charles White and Complete the 

Necessary Documentation – G. Poole    

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept land donation from Charles White and authorize staff to 

complete the necessary documentation. 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Charles White is offering another parcel of land to BWD as a donation. 

This new parcel is adjacent to another one of Mr White’s donations. Staff is requesting 

authorization from the Board to accept the donation prior to the end of 2017 and create the 

necessary documents.  

FISCAL IMPACT: None at this time 

ATTACHMENTS: Map and property information to be provided at the meeting 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

109



Item 

 III A 

Financials 

110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM III C 

WATER AND WASTE 

WATER OPERATIONS 

REPORT 

124



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM III D 

WATER PRODUCTION 

/USE RECORDS 

125



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – DECEMBER 14, 2016 

AGENDA BILL VI 

December 8, 2016 

 

TO:    Board of Directors, Borrego Water District 

FROM:        Geoff Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:    Informational Items Summary 

 

A. ACWA Fall Conference 

  1.  H. Ehrlich  

  2.  G. Poole – Verbal Presentation and Handouts 

 

Director Ehrlich and GM Poole attended different days of the ACWA Conference. Director 

Ehrlich’s and GM Poole’s Reports are attached.  

 

B. 900 Tank Design - D. Dale 

 

David Dale and Greg Holloway have been working hard and making great progress on the 900 

Tank design. Flow tests have been conducted and adequate flows can be achieved at the tank site 

without any booster pumps. David and Greg have also come up with creative ideas for current 

and future pipeline configurations to maximize the benefit of the tank. 

 

C. Review of new BWD Water Bills – J. Tatusko 

 

Director Tatsuko asked for this item to be placed on the Agenda to allow for the Board to discuss 

the new water bill format. 

 

D. Grant Funding Update – Prop One and USDA – J. Tatusko 

 

Director Tatusko, GM Poole and DE Dale will update the Board on the current status of Prop 1 

and USDA grant programs. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



Contract / Project October November December
PAYMENTS

T2 Borrego 12/31/14: T2 to purchase land to fallow  

12/31/18 lease expires                 Send 

invoice for Spare Capacity 

P & I Payment for ID4 COP's

Compass Bank Payment due December 1st. 

CONTRACTS
American Red Cross-can cancel any time 

Club Circle (Cameron)

Green Desert Landscape

Xerox

Pitney Bowes - postage machine

San Diego Mailing Solutions (Annual maintenance - 

postage and stuffer machine)

Ramona Disposal - Club Circle rate valid until 12/2016

Ramona Disposal - BWD Dumpsters rate valid until 12/2016
REPORTS

CASGEM Submit CASGEM water level data

CCR 10/1/15 Mail CCR Certification form
Cameron Bros. Water Usage Report (golf 

course) to county
Send to County DPLU by 10/31

Santago Estate

Annual EAR Report (CDHS)

Check fallow property for water usage

Report Conservation efforts to State Report Due 

Surplus Water Activity

ADMINISTRATIVE

Audit

Budget

Business Plan 

Utility Rate Study Schedule

Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

(GSP)

Agree on GSP funding mechanism; 

start GSP development

BVG GSP Consultant Selection Process and 
GSP Development Schedual

2016: Advertise and Issue RFP

Investment Policy

Special Assessments / tax bill resolutions-
Taussig

Town Hall Meeting

Borrego Water Advisory Committee 
(BWAC)Formation

2016: BWAC Member Nominations

Water Credit Policy

Storage/blending infrastructure project

12/9/2016 10:47 AM

141



Contract / Project January February March 
PAYMENTS

T2 Borrego 1/1/15: Pay spare cost in advance

P & I Payment for ID4 COP's 1st half of payments due
Compass Bank 2016 - payment due March 1st.

CONTRACTS
American Red Cross-can cancel any time 

Club Circle (Cameron) option to renew lease by 2/28/2017

Green Desert Landscape discuss w/ Bob the option of continuing with 

contract 2/28/2017

Xerox

Pitney Bowes - postage machine

San Diego Mailing Solutions (Annual maintenance - 

postage and stuffer machine)

Ramona Disposal - Club Circle

Ramona Disposal - BWD Dumpsters

REPORTS

CASGEM

CCR

Cameron Bros. Water Usage Report (golf course) to 

county

Santago Estate

Annual EAR Report (CDHS) Due 3/31 for previous year
Check fallow property for water usage

Report Conservation efforts to State

Surplus Water Activity

ADMINISTRATIVE

Audit

Budget Pump check

Business Plan 

Utility Rate Study Schedule

Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) District Meeting Jan. 20 to discuss policy recommendations, 

DRAFT MOU between County & District.  Submit boundary 

adjustment to DWR

District Meeting February 17th to discuss policy 

recommendations, Draft MOU of County and Distict with 

Coaltion; proposal for mechanism(s) to pay for GSP 

development

BVG GSP Consultant Selection Process and 
GSP Development Schedual

2017: Consultant Notice to Proceed;   

2017-2019:  GSP Development

Investment Policy

Special Assessments / tax bill resolutions-Taussig

Town Hall Meeting Design Agenda for 2017 Town Hall Meeting March 2017'

Borrego Water Advisory Committee 
(BWAC)Formation

Water Credit Policy 2015- Check if pricing needs to be adjusted 

(moved to due dilligence)
Storage/blending infrastructure project

12/9/2016 10:47 AM

142



Contract / Project April May June
PAYMENTS

T2 Borrego Raftelis spare capacity cost 

analysis

5/1/15 Notice of 2015/2016 spare 

capacity due.   

P & I Payment for ID4 COP's

Compass Bank 2016-payment due June 1st.

CONTRACTS
American Red Cross-can cancel any time 

Club Circle (Cameron) Lease expires 6/30/2017

Green Desert Landscape Agreement expires 6/30/2017

Xerox

Pitney Bowes - postage machine 4/1/2017 send letter of cancellation if desired

San Diego Mailing Solutions (Annual maintenance - 

postage and stuffer machine)

Ramona Disposal - Club Circle

Ramona Disposal - BWD Dumpsters

REPORTS

CASGEM Submit CASGEM water level data

CCR
Cameron Bros. Water Usage Report (golf 

course) to county

Santago Estate Occupancy report due

Annual EAR Report (CDHS)

Check fallow property for water usage

Report Conservation efforts to State

Surplus Water Activity 4/1/17: Calculate Surplus Water Activity 05/01/17: Notify Rams Hill of Surplus Water 

Availability

ADMINISTRATIVE

Audit

Budget CIP meeting, draft budget document Final Budget document / FY Rate Resolution Approval of Budget June 9th

Business Plan FY Budget and new rates approved

Utility Rate Study Schedule

Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

(GSP)

District Meeting March 17th to discuss policy recommendations, Draft 

MOU between County and District; DRAFT MOU of County and District 

with Coalition; proposal for mechanism(s) to pay for GSP development

BVG GSP Consultant Selection Process and 
GSP Development Schedual

Investment Policy Investment polices restated

Special Assessments / tax bill resolutions-
Taussig

Special Assessments resolutions due

Town Hall Meeting

Borrego Water Advisory Committee 
(BWAC)Formation

2017: BWD/County approval  of 

Nominations

2017: BWD/County approval  of Nominations, 

Prepare By-Laws and Orientation                                                                                                            

Water Credit Policy

Storage/blending infrastructure project

12/9/2016 10:47 AM

143



Contract / Project July August September
PAYMENTS

T2 Borrego 7/1/17: establish water budget

P & I Payment for ID4 COP's 2nd half of payments due

Compass Bank 1st payment due September 1st

CONTRACTS
American Red Cross-can cancel any time 

Club Circle (Cameron)

Green Desert Landscape Cost of Water Adjustment each July 1st. 

With Cameron

Xerox Lease contract expires 7/2020

Pitney Bowes - postage machine lease expires 7/2017

San Diego Mailing Solutions (Annual maintenance - 

postage and stuffer machine)
Annual maintenance contract expires 

10/6/16

Ramona Disposal - Club Circle contact RDS re: contract renewal 

Ramona Disposal - BWD Dumpsters contact RDS re: contract renewal

REPORTS

CASGEM

CCR CCR to be distributed July 1st
Cameron Bros. Water Usage Report (golf 

course) to county

Santago Estate

Annual EAR Report (CDHS)

Check fallow property for water usage Annual fallow property check

Report Conservation efforts to State

Surplus Water Activity

ADMINISTRATIVE

Audit Begin audit Review of draft audit report

Budget

Business Plan New rates go into effect March 2015-Identify & Implement 

Mechansim to pay for GSP costs. March 

2016- Update rate structure & water, sewer 

& WWT rates

Utility Rate Study Schedule

Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) DRAFT MOU of County and District with Coalition; 

proposal for mechanism(s) to pay for GSP 

development

BVG GSP Consultant Selection Process and 
GSP Development Schedual

Investment Policy

Special Assessments / tax bill resolutions-

Taussig

Town Hall Meeting

Borrego Water Advisory Committee 
(BWAC)Formation

Water Credit Policy

Storage/blending infrastructure project

12/9/2016 10:47 AM

144




